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December 14, 2012 

Subject:  Rangeley Branch Rail Restoration 

State WIN:  017936.00 

Amendment No. 3 

 

 

Dear Sir/Ms: 

 

Make the following change(s) to the Bid Documents: 

 

QUESTIONS: 

 

The following questions have been received: 

Question:   According to the Notice To Contractors, the Contractor is required to have 

successfully completed a railroad project of similar size and scope within the last 

five years and must submit a one-page project summary along with its bid. Given the 

quantity of earthwork effort on this project, is it the Owner’s intent that the General 

Contractor be primarily a railroad contractor, or is it possible that an earthwork 

contractor submit a bid as the General Contractor?  Please elaborate on this 

requirement. 

Response:   It is not our intent to eliminate any potential bidders with this qualification 

requirement. Either an earthwork contractor or a railroad contractor could submit a 

bid as the General Contractor, provided that proof of successful completion of a 

comparable project within the last five years is submitted with the bid. We are 

looking for this summary for BOTH the earthwork contractor and the rail contractor. 

 

Question:   For what extent of the project is Railroad Protective Liability Insurance required? 

Response:   Railroad Protective Liability Insurance will be required for 100% of the project.    
 

Question:   We have not been able to find a local subcontractor who is familiar with or capable 

of installing the vertical drains. Could you provide a few references for us to 

contact? 

Response:   HB Wick Drains, 5035 Jefferson Ave., West Middletown, PA 15379, U.S.A. 

Phones: (724) 587-0880, Fax: (724) 587-0870, Email: jwarren@haywardbaker.com 
    

Question:   Can the bid bond be on our bonding company’s standard form, or do we have to use 

the sample form in the bid documents? If we must use the sample form, can we get a 

copy that does not have the word “SAMPLE” watermarked across it? 

Response:   You can use either your bonding company’s standard form or the sample from the 

bid documents. A clean copy of the sample form, without the watermark, is attached 

if you chose to use it. 

 

Question:   Who is the bid bond to, is it “Treasurer, State of Maine” as stated in the sample 

form, or is it the owner of the project? 

Response:  The bid bond shall be to the “Lewiston Auburn Railroad Company” as indicated in 

the attached sample form.  
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Question:  Regarding the concrete pipe ties on the 96-inch RCP, the top two ties are anticipated 

to act in compression during settlement of the pipe, and the bottom tie may move in 

tension. Is it necessary to tighten the top two ties after the settlement has occurred, 

and can you verify that the bottom tie only moves in compression?   

Response: The Contractor is not required to tighten the top two ties after settlement has 

occurred. The compressive forces at the top of the pipe will keep the joint together 

once all of the settlement has occurred. As for the bottom half of the pipe, it is 

difficult to determine whether the pipe ties will be in tension or compression, since 

this will be a factor of the friction between the soil and concrete, and the differential 

between the settlement rate versus the backfill rate (and placement location). 

Whereas the ties are intended to provide tensile strength across the joint, a nominal 

amount of tension is to be expected and would be deemed acceptable.  At the 

discretion of the Resident, the bottom ties may be installed so as to allow a 

maximum of 1-inch of separation at each joint. If the bottom ties are placed within 

the pipe (as opposed to externally), then the allowable range of movement shall start 

as 1/2-inch and shall be monitored by the Resident throughout the duration of the 

project. The range of movement may be increased up to an additional 1/2-inch, but 

shall not exceed a total of 1-inch total. 

 

Question:  Regarding the concrete pipe ties on the 96-inch RCP, is it possible to place the 

bottom tie on the inside of the pipe to avoid safety concerns associated with 

excavating beneath this large pipe? 

Response:  Yes.   

 

Question:  Regarding the concrete pipe ties on the 24-inch RCP utility sleeve, it may be difficult 

to place the bottom tie within the pipe (due to pipe dimension) in order to avoid 

safety concerns associated with excavating beneath the pipe. Are there other 

alternatives? 

Response: Yes. Rotate the section view shown on Sheet 9 of the Plans by 180 degrees.  In 

general, the utility sleeve will be installed in a location perpendicular to the baseline 

of the existing rail bed (where future settlement is not anticipated), and immediately 

below the frost depth line. The Resident and Owner will identify the specific 

location once the project is underway. Since the utility sleeve is unlikely to settle, the 

joints can be constructed closed and the ties can be fully tightened. 

 

Question:  Regarding the concrete pipe ties on the 96-inch RCP, the use of plywood on the 

outside of the pipe appears to prevent soil from migrating into the opening, but why 

is plywood not required on the inside of the pipe up to the 3-ft of fill material? 

Response: The use of plywood on the interior joints was originally considered, but deemed 

unnecessary due to the construction sequence of the pipe. We envisioned that the fill 

material would be placed during the latter stages of construction at which time some 

if not all of the settlement will have already transpired, and therefore the joints 

would be in their final location when the material was placed.  

 

Consider these changes and information prior to submitting your bid on Thursday, January 3, 

2013. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Jennifer Williams, PE 

Transportation Division / MPO Director 
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LEWISTON AUBURN RAILROAD COMPANY 

 

BID GUARANTY – BID BOND FORM 
 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT        
 

    , of the City/Town of    and State of   

 

as Principal, and                 as Surety, a  

 

Corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of               and having a usual place of 

 

Business in       and hereby held and firmly bound unto the Lewiston Auburn  

 

Railroad Company in the sum of                     ,for payment which Principal and Surety bind  

 

themselves, their heirs, executers, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally.    

 

 

 

The condition of this obligation is that the Principal has submitted to the Lewiston Auburn Railroad Company,  

 

hereafter Railroad, a certain bid, attached hereto and incorporated as a part herein, to enter into a written  

 

contract for  the construction of           

 

       and if the Railroad shall accept said bid and the  

 

Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form attached hereto (properly completed in  

 

accordance with said bid) and shall furnish bonds for this faithful performance of said contract, and  

 

for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing material in connection therewith, and shall  

 

in all other respects perform the agreement created by the acceptance of said bid, then this obligation  

 

shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force, and effect. 

 

 

    Signed and sealed this  day of    20  

 

 

WITNESS:      PRINCIPAL: 

 

       By      

 

       By:      

 

       By:      

 

WITNESS      SURETY: 

       By      

 

       By:      

 

       Name of Local Agency:        
 


